United Nations A\c.6/53/SR.20

General Assembly Distr.: General

V Fifty-third session 18 November 1998

2 .
=7 (Official Records Original: English

Sixth Committee

Summary record of the 20th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Wednesday, 4 November 1998, at 3 p.m.

Chairman Mr. Enkhsaikhan. . ......... . @hgolia)
later: Mr. Mochochoko (Vice-Chairman)................. ... ... .ot (Lesotho)
later: Mr. Enkhsaikhan. ......... .. ... Ovigolia)

Contents

Agenda item 150: Report of the International Law Commission on the work of its fiftieth
sessior(continued)

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatibmthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each Committee.

98-82141 (E)


<<ODS JOB NO>>N9882141E<<ODS JOB NO>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>>A/C.6/53/SR.20<<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>><<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>> 


A/C.6/53/SR.20

The meeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m. international forums. The right of petition, however, entitled
an individual to bring a petition directly before a judicial

. ] body. The two institutions were thus completely separate and
Agenda item 150: Report of the International Law ghould not be confused.

Commission on the work of its fiftieth sessioncontinued) ) . .
(A/53/10 and Corr.1) 4.  Turningto chapter VI of the report, he said that in the

. absence of a coherent doctrine encompassing all types of
1. Mr. Win (Myanmar) said that his Government hagynjjateral acts, the Commission’s work would constitute the
repeatedly expressed its support for the work of thgogressive development of international law in that area. The
International Law Commission since its inception. Hi%ievelopment of rules or guiding principles would help to
country was making every effort to strengthen the legal systeiarify various aspects of State acts. As far as the scope of the
that had been in force since its accession to independencqg@ic was concerned, it was essential to establish a clear
years earlier. That was being done not only in order ¥amework that could facilitate the Commission’s work. His
modernize the existing laws, but to promote the rule of laye|egation concurred with the Special Rapporteur that it was
within the country, especially in those areas that onlygioent ot necessary for the Commission to examine all types of
years had seen a cessation of armed insurgencies and achie\gh acts. His delegation supported the approach adopted by
peace and stability. His delegation acknowledged thg{e commission at its previous session, that of limiting the
international law played a crucial role in the preservation @tope of the topic to unilateral acts of States which generated
international peace and security. The topicsler discussion |ega] effects. That approach excluded unilateral acts of States
by the Commission required clearly defined internationghked to a specific legal regime and acts of other subjects of

rules that could prevent unnecessary problems in tiigernational law, such as international organizations.
international arena. His delegation noted with satisfaction the

dissemination of international law publications by th@: While his delegation agreed that declarations should

Commission and the holding of the International Law Seming?rm the core qfthe Spgcial Rapporteur’s work, the mandate
in Geneva. of the Commission did not preclude the study of other

) unilateral acts. His delegation had no objections to a study
2. Mr. Zarif (Islamic Republic of Iran), referring to peing undertaken of the silence of a State and of estoppel; it
chapter V of the report of the International Law orspould be borne in mind, however, that silence was not a legal
Commission (A/53/10 and Corr.1), said that the topic Qkrm and could not give rise to legal consequences.
diplomatic protection had major practical significance fog gnsideration of estoppel, however, might be useful to the
contemporary international relations. In view of recentommission in developing a fuller view of those types of
developments in the field, the Commission should continygjjateral acts which unquestionably fell within the scope of
to discharge the mandate entrusted to it in accordance wjga topic. As to the extension of the scope of the topic to
its plan of work. His delegation supported the conclusions ghjjateral acts of States issued to other subjects of

the Working Group as contained in paragraph 108 of thgernational law, his delegation believed that that did not fall
report and believed that the Special Rapporteur shoylgihin the Commission’s mandate.

proceed with the preparation of his second report, to %e

entitled “Basis for diplomatic protection” With regard to chapter VIII of the report, his delegation

) . concurred with the Commission that in the absence of positive
3. His delegation agreed that the customary law approaghmments by States, the Commission’s work on the topic

should form the basis for the Commission’s work on the topighould be limited to the natiofity of natural persons. It
Nevertheless, the growing number of bilateral investmefd mained open-minded, however, as to the necessity of
promotion and protection agreements should not B@dertaking further work if Governments which hastently

overlooked. At the same time, the extension of the scope f{dergone succession provided compelling reasons for doing
the topic to extraneous issues should be avoided. The analggy

between diplomatic protection and the right of petition was i )
misleading. As explained by the Special Rapporteut; W'th regard to chapter IV _of_the report, it was
diplomatic protection could be invoked in the case of ;ncouraging to note j[hat the Commlsglon.had completed the
dispute between a host State and a foreign national whd¥gt Set of draft articles on prevention in only one year.
rights had been violated and who had suffered injury aSCaoncernmg the question ra|se_zd b,y the Co.mm|SS|on in
result. Since the foreign national was unable to invoke tlpé\ragraph 32 of the report, while his delegation tended to

remedies provided for under international law, the State Bgree_w't,h the Comm|33|_on -that the duty of prevention was
nationality could espouse the individual's claim irf" obligation of conduct, it wished to emphasize that within



A/C.6/53/SR.20

the framework of State responsibility, the breach of an international community, they unquestionably required a
obligation of conduct could still produce consequences. specific regime of responsibility different from the regime
I;.?pvisaged for violations of other primary rules of international

8. As to the appropriate type of dispute settleme L ) .
procedure, that depended on the final form which the drAﬁW' The qualitative difference between the two categories of

articles should take: in his delegation’s view, a model law Wégternationallywrongful acts was the source of the distinction
the most suitable format. In addition to a fact-findindn draft article 19 between delicts and State crimes. The

Commission, negotiations and recourse to a conciliatidﬂtern‘;"t:ona'" Crlmlgallz_atlond ((Djf exceptlﬂnall)r/] serious f
commission appeared to be appropriate mechanisms. /fongiul acts”was thus intended to strengthen the notion o
international public order and to preserve the highest values

9. Turning to chapter V of the report, he said higf hymanity. The distinction also took into account the
delegation shared the Commission’s general view that tBgojution of international society, which was now based on
Vienna Conventions on the law of treaties had establishe@@idarity between States while at the same time reflecting
practical reservations regime applicable to all types @heir wish to respond collectively to a violation of society’s
treaties. By recognizing the right of States to reserve theismmon values. To abandon such a hierarchy of breaches of
positions while signing, ratifying or acceding to multilaterajnternational obligations, as had been proposed, would be to
treaties, the Vienna regime had facilitated the accession of@regard that need and to return to the traditional bilateralist
large number of States to such treaties. His delegatiggproach to the law of international responsibility, which had
therefore concurred with the Commission’s decision to foCygen concerned solely with repairing the damage suffered by
on remedying ambiguities and clarifying obscurities. In thgf Sate as a result of a breach of a primary rule of international
respect, the draft guidelines proposed by the Specjgly, Since the main argument of those opposed to the
Rapporteur on the definition of reservations and interpretativgstinction in draft article 19 was based on the penal
declarations were a step in the right direction. connotations of the concept of an international State crime,
10. With regard to the question raised by the Speciiis delegation would welcome all efforts aimed at reaching
Rapporteur in paragraph 41 of the report, his delegati@@reement on a new term. It had been suggested that the
believed that unilateral statements by which a State purporte@ncept should be defined, respectively, as a violationjoa
to increase its commitments to a given treaty should not 6@gens norm, an exceptionally serious internationally
considered as reservations. Such statements were meveigngful act or a breach of an obligation that was essential
proposals by a State for amending a treaty, and could becof@e the protection of the fundamental interests of the
binding only after their acceptance by other parties ipternational community as a whole. In the final analysis, all
accordance with the provisions of the treaty. those proposals appeared to be more or less consistent with
11. Mr. Momtaz (Islamic Republic of Iran), referring to thg sul g.e.nerlsnatur.e of Sta@e resp9n5|b|l|ty, .Wh'Ch was
. X neither civil nor criminal, but international. Whichever the

chapter VIl of the report, noted that with few exceptions, mo't;érm was selected, it did not seem necessary to provide a
developing countries had not yet responded to the . L :
Commission’s invitation to submit written observations ORI’GCISG definition of a wrongful act.
the draft articles on State responsibility adopted on fird3. His delegation deemed it essential, however, to clarify
reading. Experience had shown that those countries generl§ legal consequences arising from the violation of the two
preferred to state their views on draft articles prepared by thategories of rules and to determine the degrees of
Commission in the framework of the Sixth Committee. Theesponsibility in each case. The distinction had no meaning
Committee should therefore attach as much importanceudless there were real differences between the consequences.
statements expressed orally as to written observations. Bespite the laudable efforts made so far by the various special
noted with satisfaction the willingness of the Specidipporteurs, it must be acknowledged that a more detailed
Rapporteur to take into account the views expressed by Sta@@glysis was needed. That was the conclusion reached by the
in debates. new Special Rapporteur, who had rightly pointed out that in

o e he case of a violation of a fundamental norm, pecuniary
12. ~With regard to the distinction between “criminal an{fcfompensation would not suffice. That was one of the issues

delictual respon5|p|llty, theret was currently a 9energy nich the Commission must address during the second
agreement, reflected in the decision of the International COL# 1

I . .
o : . eading of the draft articles.
of Justice in thdBarcelona Tractiorcase, as to the existence 9 .
of international obligations towards the international4. Other related questions also warranted further
community as a whole, oerga omne®bligations. Since consideration. For instance, an objective determination of the

breaches of such obligations undermined the very basis of gidstence of a breach of a fundamental norm should not be left



A/C.6/53/SR.20

to the discretion of the State which claimed to be injured. His  especiallyin the case of bilateral disputes. The question also

delegation continued to believe that the International Court rose as to whether the objectives underlying the adoption of

of Justice was the body which offered the best guarantee of countermeasures should be taken into consideration in
impartiality and which was capable oftaking a fully informed assessing the degree of proplistiona that end, the

decision on the existence of such a breach. Only afterwards Commibsiold gonsider the measures adoptedeicent

did the question of the international community’s response years against the so-called “pariah” States which were guilty

arise. The current draft treated each member of the ofviolating the fundamental norms of international law.

international community as an injured State, giving it the r|gr2}7_ Mr. Chimimba (Malawi) said that the streamlining of

to respond, including through the adoption o he draft articles on State responsibility had led to many

countermeasures, which, it must be admitted, IooseoIinfﬁ)rovements in the text. His delegation agreed in particular

particularly high risk of abuse. In his delegation’s view, thtt:\.nat no distinction should be made betweaanta jure

”.ght of response should be given only to States t.ha't we %stionisandactajure imperiifor the purposes of article 5.
directly affected. It had been suggested thgt“a dls.t”?Ct,', ere was no doubt that internal law would be relevant in
should be made among States based on their F"OX'”?'W &?xtain circumstances, but not always decisive, with regard

the breach; t'he 90”‘”?'55.'0” shauld consider that question nghe determination of the status of an organ of the State and
propose objective criteria. the attribution to the State of the conduct of its entities.

15. At the current stage of international relations However, it might be better to refer to internal law in the
characterized by the lack of an effective, centralized system commentary rather than in the body of the draft articles. The
of coercion, it was inconceivable that an injured State should broadening of the scope of article 7 by means of an
be prevented from taking countermeasures. On the other explanation in the commentary did indeed reflect the realities
hand, in order to prevent abuses, it would be prudent for the ofthe contemporary world with respect to the delegation of
Commission not only to clarify the rules of customary governmental authority.

in_ternational law, but also to Qevelop clear rules limiting th’f& Turning to article 19, he said that in their joint statement
circumstances under Wh".:h .States. could regort 19 the Committee at the fifty-first session theuntries of the
countermeagures. If the parties in conflict were subject t_@outhern African Development Community had indicated
compulsory dispute settlementpr.ocedure, t,hat would Obv'q}?eir preference for retaining the distinction between
thegeeorllfor counteLmegsTreg. Smcert]hatddu:tnot ,"’“lwaysfsqﬁfgrnational delicts and international crimes. His delegation
to be the case, the inclusion in the draft articles of aly;;| pe|q that pogion although it was mindful that others

obligation on the part of the injured State to negotiate p”?’fﬁsﬁagreed. It might be useful to explore alternative language

to taking countermeasures appeared to be appropriate. {j6 1, \youid avoid the criminal implications. The second

obligqtiqn to r?egotiate ‘F‘ good f"?lith’ and to Cor‘Cll"dglternative offered by the Special Rapporteur, combined with
negotiations within the stipulated time-frame appeared B%pects of the fifth alternative — decriminalizing State

provide sufficient guarantees to the injured State that IF@sponsibility—offered a realistic solution. The second option

pqsmon would not be Jeqpargllzed. In th,e meantlme, t ight pose dilemmas, but the distinction was an important
injured State should confine itself to taking such interirg . o ought to be made

measures as seemed necessary to protect its rights.
9. His delegation noted that the Commission would

36 The fa||Iure of negot(;atlondgdor of r;]my other pe‘?"feﬂéontinue to take a “objective responsibility approach”, and
Ispute settlement procedure did not, however, entitie tESsitive law certainly drew distinctions between certain rights

!njured State tc.) resort.to countermegsures as it saw fit. T fid obligations. On the other hand, such distinctions did not
interests of the international community required that certa]

) f b hibited. In th énways have to entail automatic distinctions in the
categorleS(_) countermgasures e pronhibited. In that Come(fgpsequences, particularly with regard to reparation. It would
the dratft articles prohibited recourse to extreme measuresa

. imed d e h orial i . wrong to underestimate the deterrent effect of the
coercion aimed at undermining the territorial integrity andiqiin ction which the Commission was seeking. Since the idea

political independence of the wrongdoing State. Since t Gf’drawing parallels between delicts and crimes seemed to

vagueness of the formula used did not make it possible {9, o 144 its origins in rules ¢fis cogensand obligations

detﬁ_rgjl_ne \;]vhacm:t typ‘?s .Of measures _feII hun_der Sfucr;]e?ga omnesa satisfactory solution might lie therein. The
prohibition, the Commission must examine the issue furt ommission should continue its efforts to fill the gaps

with reference to the recent practice of States. The applicatiggtween the various options
of the principle of proportionality, which was recognized by '
doctrine and jurisprudence, was a regulatory element,



A/C.6/53/SR.20

20. His delegation was glad that the Commission had held regime might warrant a specific study by the Commission, but
a segment of its session in New York, thus enhancing the not as part of the law of responsibility. The provisions on
possibility of contacts between its members and dispute settlement seemed equally misplaced. The effect of
representatives of Governments. The practice should become Part Three was to establish the jurisdictional settlement of all

aregular one. disputes, but there was no reason to single out disputes
21. Mr.Mochochoko (Lesotho), Vice-Chairman, took th‘g‘;onnected with State responsibility by applying an ad hoc
Chair settlement mechanism to them. There were rarely any disputes

about responsibility alone, but rather substantive disputes
22. Mr.Alabrune (France) said that France had expresseghich had consequences for responsibility. It would be better
serious reservations concerning the draft articles on Stq](t)ermy on general international law, and one solution might
responsibility because they addressed primary rules. Thg to give Part Three the form of an optional protocol, if it
Commission should in fact limit its study to the codificationygyid not be deleted. The Special Rapporteur stated in his
of secondary rules. There was nothing to prevent th@port that he had noted the concerns expressed by some
Commission stating as a prior condition to its work thg;oyernments about the inclusion of detailed provisions on
existence of a wrongful act by a State, but the study sholdyntermeasures and on disputétisenent. It was to be

had been breached. France had repeatedly stated thatffige-examined the two questions.

existence of harm was an indispensable element for triggerin . . . .

State responsibility and had always criticized the idea thatg The Com_m|f[tee must give son’ra)Ug_ht to its relayons
failure to fulfil obligations was sufficient. It regretted that thé’\"th the Cor_nm_lssmn, with aview to offering more gwdan(_:e
Special Rapporteur had recommended no change in t establishing a true dialogue between the two bodies.

respect in draft article 1 and hoped that his re-examinati§iTtNer topics must be prop(_)sed, S'_UCh as th_e Iggal
of the relationship between article 1 and article 40, on ronsequences of the decisions of international organizations.

“injured State”, would allow the Commission to posit the:rhe Commission might usefully make a separate study of

principle that harm must exist if State responsibility was {pountermeasures regimes instead of dealing with the topic
be entailed. under State responsibility and also, as already suggested,

) ) o reflect on the concept of legal person under international law.
23. His delegation had also frequently criticized the concept Mr.Da G . .
of “international crime” as defined in draft article 19 and th 8. . Da Gama (Portugal) said that the draft articles on

distinction between crimes and delicts. Some wrongful aorgée_vgr_]tlon of transboundary damage_ from hazardous
were of course more serious that others. but tretivities correctly reflected the basic principles of
Commission’s distinction was impracticable. Moreover, hnternatlonal environmental law, although the Commission

drew very few consequences from the distinction. Hilgad taken a cautious approach by leaving aside for the

delegation looked forward to the conclusions of the workin oment the fundamental question of compensation for h'arm
used. Portugal had always welcomed legal solutions

group to be set up on article 19, and was pleased that i , . . but i
Commission stressed the importance of taking the views'gpolving commitments to preventive action, but it was

Governments into account during the second reading of tﬁasential to establish the obligation to pay compensation for
draft articles harm. The future legal instrument should therefore cover both

revention and compensation. Compensation of innocent
24. Some of the drafting changes in chapter Il proposed Bi}étims must in fact be a guiding principle, but Portugal
the Special Rapporteur went in the right direction but did n@gmained flexible on the shaping of the theoretical framework
take full account of the written comments submitted byt sych a principle. It shared the regret of other delegations
France. at the deletion of article 1 (b), a move limiting the text to
25. The term “injured State” in article 40 was ambiguoudi@zardous activities: activities not normally entailing risk
There again, the emphasis must be on the notion of “harnnight also cause harm, and in any event there was currently
It was a good thing that the Commission was to re-examif clear definition of hazardous activity.

the definition of “injured State”, but it would be wrong to dogg. portugal endorsed the need for reinforcement of the
S0, as itintended, on the basis of the notiojusfcogens  gjispute-settlement mechanisms and welcomed the provision
26. The provisions on countermeasures had no placeoi a fact-finding commission in article 17, paragraph 2.

draft articles on State responsibility, which should includgp.  Portugal continued to believe that diplomatic protection
only matters connected with that topic. A countermeasurgfould include the protection claimed for their agents by



A/C.6/53/SR.20

international organizations, because of both the existing legal clarify concepts such as “appropriatnlegeticn” and
precedents and the basic fairness of such protection. The “reasonable time-limit for the exercise of the rights”.
protection should also cover persons located in territori $

under a State’s administration. There was a clear need for E@d
Comml_ssmn to focus on concrete draft_amcles. Dlp_lomatlrce ime appliednutatis mutandigo such situations. With
protection *T‘“S‘ pe regarded asasovereign prer(_)gatwe of Fggard to the nationality of legal persons, the Commission
State of nationality, a prerogative entailing discretionary StaTtﬁ

F I tical th (ﬁdst begin by defining what a legal person was and then
powers. For afl practical purposes Ih€ persons concer ress the question of how to assess the nationality of such
should be considered as beneficiaries of international law.

. . . _ rsons.
to the relationship between human rights and d|plomat§)c

protection, the two institutions should not be specificall}6. His delegation attached great importance to the
linked in any draft articles on the topic. long-overdue work on the topic of reservations to treaties. It

31 His delegati dit i the tobi v¥as often unclear in practice which reservations were
: IS delegation reserved its position on Ihe topic %cceptable and what effect objections had on them. Since no

unilateral acts of States pending the more substantive repgft, .ise consequences were attached to objections, the result

promisgq by the Special Rapporteur. It also wi;hed to def\?/és often that each State became the sole judge of the
'FS .posmon on whetlher the scope of the topic should ‘compatibility of reservations with the purpose of the treaty.
limited to declarations, as proposed by the Speuq,

) ‘Therefore, while agreeing that the Vienna regime must be
Rapporteur, or should encompass other unilateral eXpreSS'B?éserved, Portugal believed that it was fundamentally

pfthe will of the S.tate. A; to whgther unlllateral acts Shou'ﬂcomplete. That was a particularly important issue in the
include acts affecting subjects of international law other th%se of rules ojus cogenssince reservations would clash
States, or limited to acts affecting other States, Portu%hh a pre-existing rule which the treaty had embodied. It was

believed that at least international organizations should Q?SO wrong to condone the practices of States which

covered. knowingly made reservations against the core of a treaty. Such

32. Onthe topic of State responsibility, Portugal endorsed practices might turn ulifyénsaa hollow word. It might

the position set forth by the representative of Denmark on indeed be useful for the Commission to consider further an
behalf of the Nordic countries with regard to the distinction ad hoc reservations regime for human rights treaties.
between deligts and c.rim.es, compgnsaﬁtion, a_pd the distinct@ﬂ Mr. Pham Truong Giang (Viet Nam) said that his
betweeracta jure gestionigndacta jure imperii There was delegation attached great importance to the question of

mf(leeed a d|§t_|ntct|0nt.|n mﬁernatlor}a: Ia\t/v betvvlien fmm%ternational liability for injurious consequences arising out
E encre]zsban Slrt] ?rna} lona tywrotrjg ula%ﬁ retgu ngh r(im Bf acts not prohibited by international law. The regulation of
reach by a state ot an international obligation. ' he Opgj{ose activities should be in accordance with basic principles
[

Portugal also believed that the draft articles should
ress situations of decolonization and specify that the

clear_ly r_evealed.the obstagles to the promotion of the rule international law, such as sovereignty of States, sovereign
law in international relations. Portugal therefore looke

forward to the three further reports promised by the Specigi‘
Rapporteur.

uality and settlement of disputes by peaceful means. The
ope of the articles must be clarified and carefully
formulated. Article 1 should be reconsidered and further
33. Turning to the topic of nationality in relation to the elaborated.

succession of States, he said that his delegation supportedége The term “significant” transboundary harm in article
approach of giving priority to questions concerning natur@l é

y ; a) should be clarified. The criteria of measurement and
persons over questions concerning legal persons. The fEles essment of “harm”, “significant” harm or “probability” of

ch.0|c.e of natlongllty was O,f crucial |mp0rtanc§, and thﬁarm should be further elaborated. His delegation agreed that
prlnglple of the ”ght_ of optlon.should be applied to theStates should take all appropriate measures to prevent or
maximum extent possible. That nghtyvag alsogpowerful toR{inimize the risk of causing significant harm to others.

for avoiding “grey areas” of competing jurisdictions. Nevertheless, the issue remained as to how to deal with harm

34. His delegation also welcomed the draft articles on of a lesser degree that was not considered “significant”.
non-retroactivity  of  legislation,  family  unity, Would measures only be taken in cases of significant harm,
non-discrimination, prohibition of arbitrary decisions, and the in accordance with article 3? The best solution, of course, was
obligation of States to prevent statelessness. The provisions not to cause any harm to others; however, if harm was
on the presumption of nationality and consent were also unavoidable and was actually caused, the State of origin
acceptable. However, an atldnal effort should be made to



A/C.6/53/SR.20

should bear the obligation. All those issues should be declaration. With regard to the distinction between
considered further. interpretative declarations and reservations, there was a third

39. Although article 7 provided that prior authorization of SPECt t0 be considered in addition to the two mentioned in

a State was required for activities within the scope of the drmragraph 51_7 of the Co_mmlssmn s_report, ”a”_‘e'y that unlike
articles, the matter of whether the prior authorization woul@SETvations, interpretative declarations — provided they were

be granted by the State of origin or the State likely to palausible —did not have any legal effect.

affected was not yet clear. The question of prior authorization 44. As a corollary to that, it should be pointed out that
might relate to the issue of prior consultation among the nothing stood in the way of a State party to a multilateral
States concerned, especially with the State that was likelyto treaty making an interpretative declaration by means of a
be affected by the activities that had the potential to cause communication to the States parties, without going through
harm. the depositary of the treaty. That procedure might not apply

40. Further discussion was also needed on article 10, th&‘hthe case of a c_o_nditiona_l interpretative declaration, an
dealt with the principle of prior notification and information Nteresting possibility mentioned in paragraph 512 of the
With regard to the determination of the burden of liability anffport.

its level, article 12, particularly paragraphs (b), (d) and (e), 45. Lastly, he said that in its future work on reservations,
should be redrafted in order to clarify the issues involved. the Commisisaridsconsider the matter of the obligations

of depositaries. Such a discussion would be particularly useful

41. Mr. Lavalle-Valdés (Guatemala), speaking on the q N h lik D
topic of reservations to treaties, said that the Commissigh depositaries who, unlike Governments or organizations,

should discuss the issues raised by reservations th&ﬁrformed their duties as depositary on a small scale. The

modified rather than excluded the application of a particul&xperience of the S_ecretary—Gene_raI of the _United Nations
provision of the treaty to which the reservation was bein uld be very useful in that regard. His delegation understood

made. The question might be raised as to whether it would t the_ gu@elmgs fol_lowed by the Sgcretary—Gener_aI n
lawful for a State party to a multilateral treaty to make gonnection with his duties as the depositary of international
reservation that would have the effect of replacing orfeaties existed only in French; it would be very helpful if they

provision of the treaty by another radically different one, thu%OUId _be made available in all the official languages of the
completely distorting the text under the guise of modifyiné)rgan'zat'on'

the provision that was being replaced. Even though such a 8. Farrell (Ireland) said that his delegation welcomed
reservation might not have any effect as an amendment, it the continuing efforts of the Commission to develop draft
would still have other legal effects. It should, in fact, be articles on the subject of State redjjpriaihile there was
considered a statement of exclusion, inasmuch as it was aimed some merit in making a distinction between wrongful
at excluding the application of the relevant provision of the international acts in accordance with their degree of gravity,
treaty to the State making the reservation. If the exclusion was his Government shared the view of those delegations which
compatible with the purposes of the treaty, it would be saw criminal responsibility as first and foremost a matter of
admissible. If the State making the reservation also assumed individual moral responsibility. The best way forward in
an additional obligation not imposed by the treaty, the international law was to try to get universal agreement that
reservation would be an extensive one as well as an exclusion. particularly heinous behaviour on the part of individuals

42. His delegation considered that an extensive reservatfiPuld be criminalized and to establish thecassary
was not really a reservation but was, rather, a unilateral 6p(gpcedures and institutions at the international level to ensure

of a State. Consequently, the effects of such a reservatﬁgﬁt human beings were called to account for such behaviour.

would not be governed by the law of treaties. A so-calle-ahe current effort to establish the International Criminal

reservation that increased the obligations of the other part{g@Urt was a move in that direction.

to a treaty was not a true reservation either. In fact, a 47. His delegation welcomed the thorough consideration
unilateral statement made by a State without any basisinan given by the Commission to the topic of criminal
external rule or circumstance could not be used to impose responsibility and, in particulakrbe/erigement by the
obligations on third States. Commission of the importance of taking into account the

43. Withregard to interpretative declarations, he said thaf s of Governments in considering that and other aspects

the interpretation given to the treaty must at least be % the draft articles.
plausible one. If it was not plausible, then the instrumentwas 48. His delegation appreciated the approach taken by the
actually an amendment disguised as an interpretative Commissionin chapter Il of the report, in which it itemized



A/C.6/53/SR.20

those aspects of its work on which it would welcome the two categories of violations was to be found in existing
comments by Governments. law and State practice.

49. He welcomed the substantial progress made by the 54. While his delegation supported the retention of article
Commission in adopting on first reading a set of draft articles 19, it considered that the definition of “international crimes”
with commentaries on the prevention of transboundary in paragraphs 2 and 3 of that article needed further
damage from hazardous activities. His Government would clarification. The category of crimes might be defined in other
examine the draft articles in due course, having particular ways, for example, by reference to the existence of some
regard to the points raised in paragraphs 31 to 34 of the specific system for their investigation and enforcement or to
report. With regard to the Committee’'s decision to their substantive consequences.

recommendaregimeonprevention,asdistinctfromaregingg Part Two, dealing with the consequences of

of liability, his delegation acknowledged the importance Qfonational crimes, did not specify the distinctive and
pfe"e_”“‘)“ bUt FOT‘Si‘?'ered it necessary also_ to consider lusive consequences of such crimes. Nor did it lay down
question of I|ab|I|ty|n_ S|tuat|ons_wr_1ere harm did occur, so a:§'ny special procedure for determining authoritatively whether

to ensure that the innocent victim was niot left to bgar th}fcrime had been committed, or what its consequenivesld

dame}ge along. !—!e urged the Comm|35|on to continue g Thus, the current draft articles failed to develop the
consider the liability aspect of the topic. distinction between crimes and delicts adequately in terms of

50. Onthetopic of reservations to treaties, his delegation the procedural implications or consequences of crimes. There
had noted with particular interest the comments of those was a marked contrast between the gravity of an international
delegations that had drawn attention to the issue of crime, as expressed in draft article 19, on the one hand, and
reservations insofar as they concerned human rights treaties. the rather limited consequences of the international crime

51.  With regard to chapter X and, in particular, the futur@entioned in articles 51 to 53. There was a further contrast

work of the Commission, his delegation agreed that ﬂHeetween the strong procedural guarantee associated with
Commission should not restrict itself to tigidnal topics and countermeasures under draft article 48 and Part Three, and

We complete absence of procedural guarantee associated with

that it should also consider topics that reflected ne ' g
|B?ernat|0nal crimes.

developments in international law and pressing concerns
the international community as a whole. He had noted with 56. Once the existence of the category of international
interest the topics referred to in paragraph 554 of the report, crimes was accepted, the consequences of the distinction must
and in particular, the reference to topics such as human rights, be dealt with in draft articles, which should set forth as
environment and shared natural resources, as worthy ofthe precisely as possible the different treatment and different
Commission’s attention in future years. With regard to consequences with respect to different violations.

paragraph 555, his delegation wished to record is;  pogarding the distinction between “criminal’ and
appreciation of the contribution made by the Commission WQalictual” State responsibility, his delegation was not in

the preparation of the original draft of the Statute of thl%lvour of developing a regime of criminal responsibility of

International Criminal Court. the State and “penalizing” that responsibility. It was

52. His delegation was pleased to have supported the trust important to include the concept of the distinction between
fund for the international seminar for young lawyers, held in  crimes and delicts in the draft articles. At the same time, the
Geneva in May 1998, and noted with satisfactiongloed acceptance of that distinction did nateessarily lead to the
geographical distribution of participants, particularly from establishment of two different types of State responsibility.
developing countries. His delegation considered that the law of State responsibility

53. Mr. Sotirov (Bulgaria) said that his remarks wouldVaS ne_ither civil nor criminal, but purely and simply

focus on the topic of State responsibility and, morlenternatlonal.

specifically, on the distinction between “international crimes” 5&4r. Kerma (Algeria) said that the Commission’s work

and “delicts as internationally wrongful acts”, as set forth in  on nationality of natural persons in relation to succession of
draft article 19, paragraph 4. There was a qualitative States was particularly timely, given the profound political
distinction in international law between the most serious changes that had taken place in recent years and the
internationally wrongful acts, which affected the interests of appearance of new subjects of international law. The draft
the international community as a whole, and other wrongful articles on the topic should be helpful as States sought
acts. Therefore, a clear distinction should be drawn between solutions to the often complex situations they had to face.
more and less serious wrongful acts. The distinction between Some of the rules reaffirmed in the draft articles were



A/C.6/53/SR.20

particularly relevant, including the provisions on statelessness 63. In view of its importance to the progressive
and family unity. Other concepts embodied in the draft development of international law, the complex subject of
articles, including those of dual nationality and multiple international liability for injurious consequences arising out
nationality, had not yet been universally accepted. In that of acts not prohibited by international law demanded the
regard, the Commission should adopt a pragmatic approach sustained attention of the Commission. Pending the
in order to avoid potential disputes between States. Commission’s final decision on the matter, however, States

59. On the question of the nationality of legal persons,?{mu'd exercise all gcautions to pr(_a\{e_nt possible injurious
seemed unlikely that the Commission would be able any tifg@nsegquences _Of hazardous activities. He_ we_lcor_‘ned the
soon to draft rules that would be practical and immediatefiP"'S'deration given to the transboundary implications of
applicable. The nationality of legal persons was a much moﬁ;grtain economic activities for the environment and noted that

complex issue than that of natural persons. The experierﬂ?g draft articles reflected the basic principles of international
of States having had a recent experience with success ironmental law. He also supported the controversial view

would undoubtedly make a useful contribution to th{:'hatthe principles of international law created obligations for

Commission’s work. The decision to pursue consideration §]tstes whose acEers were ha_rmful to thbel er}wrogment of
the matter would be made in the light of the comments whidfher States. The compensation payable for damages,

States submitted to the Commission, particularly concernin wever, should vary according to the economic a_nd social
its future approach. development of the country responsible, in which case

articular attention should be devoted to the specific situation

60. The major difficulty concerning the controversiayfthe developing countries, which were the most vulnerable
subject of reservations to treaties was that the 1969 Vienpanat respect.

Convention on the Law of Treaties did not cover all aspects . o
of the matter. Nevertheless, he shared the Commission’s vigdy He similarly supported many of the Commission’s

that the reservations regime pursuant to that Convention Wrggommendatlons, contamed In th_e |mpo_rtan_t fmal_ c_hapter
flexible enough to maintain a satisfactory balance betwegﬁ the report, that were aimed at improving its efficiency.

the goal of maintaining the integrity of a treaty text and thgv'thom the full cooperation of th_e S_'Xth Committee and
need for universality. Governments, however, the Commission would be unable to

] o o _fulfil its mandate satisfactorily. In conclusion, he expressed
61. Interpretation of the objectives of the monitoring bodiegpproval of the subjects identified by the Commission for
established under certain human rights treaties Wgglusion in its long-term programme of work and reiterated

was to ensure application of the treaty in question and thgyysuit of the work on its agenda.

could not assume other powers, such as competence to , , )

evaluate the permissibility of reservations, unless explicitﬁls' Mr. Enkhsaikhan (Mongolia) resumed the Chair.
mandated to do so under the treaty in question, to which they  &&. Pfirter (Observer for Switzerland), commenting
owed their existence in the first place. on the draft guidelines on reservations to treaties, expressed

62. His delegation would comment in due course on ﬂﬂpproval of the composite method adopted by the Commission

complicated subject of the definition and formulation o Its ef_forts to arrive at a comprehgnswe definition of
reservations, as well as on the draft guidelines on reservatidfgervations that would reflect the pertinent elements of the

contained in the report. The Guide to Practice reflected tﬂlgﬁnitions contained in the three Vienna CO”VG”“‘?US of
current trend followed by States, particularly concernin 969, 1978 and 1986. He queried, however, the precision of

reservations having territorial scope and reservatio e term “purports to exclude or to modify the legal effect

formulated jointly. He agreed with the Special RapporteiPntained in the resulting “Vienna defiion” set out in draft
that statements designed to increase the obligations of tHé#ideline 1.1. itwould be more precise to define reservations

author could not constitute a reservation. The conclusions®t PUTPOrting to “exclude or to limit the legal effect” of
the Special Rapporteur concerning the definition Sertain provisions, particularly since statements designed to
reservations provided food for thought with a view t(Sncrease the obligations of their author were not reservations

clarifying and finalizing the definition. He looked forward toin the sense of the Vienna definition and since all reservations

seeing the Commission’s final conclusions concerning tiéere aimed at wholly or partially neutralizing certain
distinction between reservations and interpretati\@ov's'ons of a given treaty. Further consideration should be
declarations given to draft guideline 1.1.1, which was flawed in that a

reservation should not relate to the way in which its author
intended to apply a treaty. Furthermore, the word



A/C.6/53/SR.20

“reservation” at the beginning of the draft guideline failed to  that the Commission would complete its second reading of the
alleviate the concern which he shared with other delegations draft articles in the spring of 1999.

that cor_ﬁfusmn mlght arise concerning a_cross—the-b_o . Having reviewed the steps taken thus far in connection
reservations and straightforward interpretative declaratlo%.[h the second part of the topic, namely the question of the

67. He regretted that the composite method had not been nationality of legal persons in relation to the succession of
used in the formulation of draft guideline 1.1.2, accordingto  States, he said that he and the Commission would jointly
which the means of expressing consent to be bound by atreaty analyse the conaueivisd on the options proposed by
excluded the declaration of succession to a treaty provided the Commission concerning the possible orientation to be
for under thel978 Vienna ©nvention. Such a declaration given to its work on that question, if indeed the Commission
was a means of expressing that consent and should therefore were invited to consider it. It was clear, however, that the
be regarded as an instance in which reservations could be question elicited little enthusiasm and that there was
formulated. Accordingly, the draft guideline should involve insufficient support to justify immediate consideration of it.

a general renvoi to th&978 Vienna ©nvention on the One solution would be to separate the two parts altogether,
understanding that clarifications would be made in the part complete work on the first part and refer the second part to
of the Guide to Practice relating to the succession of States the Working Group on future topics, in which context the
in relation to reservations to treaties. Commission could evaluate the framework for the question

68. It was surprising that draft guideline 1.1.3 did noz—lmd the exter_1t of its usefulness or urgency compared to th_e
include the terms “modify”, “limit” or any of their derivatives, other new topics proposed. He emphasized, however, that his

as the possibility could not be entirely excluded that a Start%m"’"k_S were made W'th_OUt prejudice t‘? the position C_)f the
responsible for the international relations of a territory mighf‘:omm'sSIOn itself, to which he would faithfully transmit at

at the time of signing a treaty or expressing its consent to gé next session all further views which he received on the

bound by it, formulate a declaration aimed at limiting th§UbJeCt'

application of the treaty or the legal effect of some of its 734r. Pellet (Special Rapporteur on reservations to
provisions in regard to that territory. The slight imbalance in  treaties) said that the Committee’s decision to invite all the
the second part of the draft guideline could be redressed by Special Rapporteurs of the Commission to address it would
adding the words “or some of its provisions” after the words facilitate dialogue, although he hoped that that interchange
“that treaty”. could be made even more effective. The Committee had a

69. Draft guideline 1.1.7 concerning reservationgght to expect the Commission to meet the needs of Member

formulated jointly provided reasonable provision for futur§tztes but, in or(_jf_er for_l(;to do Sr?' States must plrovr:de clearer
situations which were likely to arise, while the additional draft"d more specific guidance than was currently the case. In

guideline provisionally adopted by the Commission appearéﬁSponse_ to repeated _f9q“‘?3t5 from the Committee, the
to pose no problems in that it stated the obvious. Commission had modified its methods of work. The

Committee, for its part, must consider ways of improving its

70. Draft guideline 1.1.6 adopted by the Draftingonsideration of the Commission’s annual report.
Committee was not altogether essential, as it repeated a

component of the definition of reservations contained in draff-  Turning to the topic of reservations to treaties, he
guideline 1.1. In the context of draft guideline 1.1.5, howeve?bserv_ed_ ﬂ,‘at most delegations  had supp(_)r'Fe_d the
it would help to clarify the concept of reservations. Irgiommlssmns decision not to depart from the definition of
connection with the latter draft guideline, he considered thggS€rvations contained in the Vienna Conventionsa#9,

a statement designed to increase the obligations of its autt}gr 8 @nd 1986. While he understood why a few delegations

was a unilateral commitment that should not be classed ad@f suggested that the Commission should have taken the
reservation. opportunity to modify the definition provided in those

) ) ) ~ Conventions, he did not agree, since such a course of action
71. Mr. Mikulka (Special Rapporteur on nationality inyould have created confusion, not only with respect to draft
relation to succession of States) said he was pleased to regiifieline 1.1 (definition of reservations) but throughout the
that several Governments had submitted their writtefaft guidelines, the purpose of which was to analyse

comments on the draft articles on nationality of naturgbservations to treaties in light of both the Vienna
persons in relation to the succession of States before {hgnventions and subsequent practice.

deadline of the end of October 1998. Notwithstanding the

comments made on the topic during the current debate, ?1% The problem had been to determine whether the word

hoped that still more written comments would be received aﬁ'a'Od'fy"’ which appeared in the definition of reservations

10



A/C.6/53/SR.20

givenin all the Vienna Conventions, could be interpreted to  provisions of treaties, a position which was not borne out by
authorize not only statements intended to limit a State’s State practice.

obligations under a treaty, but also those intended to increa/sga Afew delegations had noted that draft guideline 1.1.2

|ts_r|ghts. Many speakers had supported his own v_|ew th&iﬁ not state that reservations could be formulated at the time
unilateral statements by which a State purported to incre tate succession. He wondered whether it would be better

its rights did not constitute reservations. However, tht consider amending that article or whether the matter should

Commls_5|or_1 had _not_ yet found an a_pproprlate Way Pl dealt with in the context of the Commission’s treatment of
expressing in a guideline a concept which appeared sim

: ) EE‘Servations in the context of State succession.
but was in fact complex because, in a sense, a State could be _
considered to have increased its own rights by making af)- On the other hand, he saw no reason to incorporate
reservation which limited its responsibilities under a treat{iention of State succession into draft guideline 1.1.3 or to
He was convinced that the Commission would findimitthat guideline to colonial situations. One delegation had
appropriate wording for that concept during the coming yeaﬁilated its intention to transmit its comments on draft guideline
taking into account the comments of delegations. Sorfel-3 t0 the Special Rapporteur at a later date; in that regard,
delegations had suggested that the Commission should simiyconsidered it appropriate for delegations or international
avoid raising the question in the draft guidelines because@@anizations to convey to the special rapporteurs their
its complexity and theoretical nature. However, the vefjositions on any aspect of the draft, whether officially or
purpose of the guidelines was to meet the needs of Statedermally.

cases which, while unusual, did in fact occur. 81. The general agreement on draft guideline 1.1.5 was

76. A few delegations had suggested that the attemptqacouraging since it demonstrated that States were not
define reservations was not a practical matter and that th@cessarily opposed to proposals involving the progressive
Commission should proceed directly to deal with the validitfevelopment of international law, provided that such
of reservations and States’ objections thereto. However,Rfoposals were reasonable and intended to prevent problems
his opinion it would not be possible to implement th&vhich had notyet arisen but which might do so in the future.

guidelines without some means of determining whetherg®,  Several delegations had stressed the need for an
given unilateral statement did, in fact, constitute a reservatiadhjective mechanism of dispute settlement in matters related
without prejudice to the question of its validity. In that regardo reservations. The Commission had not dealt with that
there appeared to be support for his decision to dgaloblem but would consider doing so, although it might be

simultaneously with reservations and interpretivgrgued that such a mechanism had no place in a guide and
declarations, a procedure which would make his own taglight better be handled through a protocol.

more difficult but would simplify that of the end users.
plify 83. Various delegations had reiterated their positions

77. Turning to issues other than the definition ofoncerning the preliminary conclusions which the
reservations, he said that one delegation had 0pp056d the@gﬁ]mission had adopted in 1997. He did not p|an to
of the word ‘directive’ as a translation of the Englishreconsider those conclusions until the majority of the

“guidelines” in the title of the draft. However, it wasguidelines had been adopted and comments had been received
important to bear in mind that the draft articles were intendeghm Member States and human rights organizations.

to form part of a guide and were, therefore, clearly not o o
compulsory in nature. Moreover, the worddighes 84. The fact that, despite its length, his third report had not

directrices, proposed by the delegation in question, had Iittltgl_e‘?IIt with a numb_er of c_om_plex problems showed b.Oth. the
meaning in French. difficulty of the topic and its importance to the Commission

_ _ ~and to States parties. In his next report, he planned to deal
78. While most delegations had approved of the wordingjth procedures for the formulation of reservations and, if
of draft guideline 1.1.1, several had agreed with thgme allowed, with the central question of the validity of
Commission members who had considered that the text lgBkervations. Lastly, while he was pleased that the
itself to confusion with interpretive declarations. Th@ommission’s work had led to useful discussion in other
Commission would reconsider that article in light of thOSﬂ)rums such as the Council of Europe and the Asian-African
comments. However, he was less convinced by the delegatjafyal Consultative Committee, the silence of such a large

which had suggested that the draft guidelines should follayymber of delegations to the Committee was less than
the Vienna Conventions in restricting the definition oéncouraging.

reservations to unilateral declarations concerning specifi )
gsp T%e meeting rose at 6.05 p.m.

11



A/C.6/53/SR.20

12



